Contracts Outline 

I. Traditional Contract Formation 

· Mutual Assent – exchange of promises
· Bilateral Contracts – accept by promising to perform 

· Offer and Acceptance – Offer is a manifestation of intent to be bound by the terms such that the offeree creates an agreement by acceptance
· Acceptance—is the manifestation of intent to be bound to terms 
· Offer v. Solicitation 

· If person knows other is not making an offer, then no offer

· Terminating Offeree’s power of Acceptance 

· Non-occurrence of any condition of acceptance

· Death or incapacity of offeror/offeree

· Rejection by offeree 

· Lapse of time

· At time specified in offer 

· If none, reasonable time 

· Counter-offer by offeree

· Qualified/Conditional “acceptance” ??

· Exs of non-counters 

· Acceptance w/ modification request

· Inquiry re: possibility of diff terms
· Revocation by the offeror

· Manifestation 

· Options? 

· Timing and the Mailbox Rule 

· Revocations and Rejections effective on receipt 

· Acceptances effective on dispatch

· Rejection followed by Acceptance =horserace 

· Acceptance followed by rejection = acceptance valid unless: 

· Rejection gets there first; and 
· Offeror relies on the rejection

· Unilateral Contract—accepts by doing the thing asked for

· Offer cannot be revoked if performance has begun

· Some jx require “substantial” performance-- discretionary

· Preparation v. performance 

· General ads typically not seen as offers; offer/reward programs are

· Ambiguous offers (unilateral v. Bilateral) 

· Offeree can accept either way 
· Essential Terms (Postponed Bargaining)
· Even if manifested intent, no contract unless terms of contract are reas. certain 

· Terms certain if provide basis for determining breach and giving appropriate remedy 

· CL—parties have to manifest sufficiently definite agreement about essential terms 

· Rest- Court can decide a reas term 

· UCC Gap fillers for terms not explicitly agreed to

· Whether a contract is formed depends on whether parties intended to be contractually bound (UCC and Restatement) 
· Can be bound even if formal document later contemplated
· Can be bound even if they contemplate further negotiations on other points 
· May not be bound if agree only on condition that further negotiations prove successful
· Letter of intent may be: 

· No contract, contemplates a written agreement but only a prelim negotiation

· Contract—binding even though formal writing is contemplated 

· Agreement to negotiate in good faith
Consideration
· Benefit to the promisor or detriment to the promise; or 
· Bargained for exchange 
· Doesn’t have to be actual “bargaining”
· Benefit/detriment must induce the promise—what promisor seeks to get with promise 

· Contract v. Conditional Gift

· If it is a gift based on some performance, then it is gratuitous and the condition is not consideration for a contract
· If benefits promisor, then is likely a contract
Sham or Nominal Consideration 

· Courts generally not concerned with adequacy, but: 

· Mere pretense of bargain is not enough 
· (nominal consideration) 

· Disparity in value may indicate the consideration was not bargained for but a sham
· Gross inadequacy may signal issues 

In search for Consideration, but not 
· Sham, Nominal, Purported Consideration 
· Option Contracts 
· Incidental Condition for gift 

· Past Consideration (Plowman)
· Moral obligation 

· Illusory Promises 

· Where performance is entirely optional w/ promisor; 
· “At will” agreement

· Conditional promises? , requirement contracts? 
· Pre-Existing Duties 

Formation in the Sale of Goods
Article 2 of the UCC
· Dealing with the sale of “goods”? 

· “moveable property” 

· Sticky situations—mix of service and goods 

· Approaches: 

· Split into separate transactions (service and goods) 
· Maj. Approach: “predominant purpose” test

Mutual Assent under UCC

· Court leans towards finding a contract
· Any manner sufficient to show agreement, including conduct 

· Moment of forming contract does not have to be known 
· If parties intend contract, does not matter if some terms are left open (as long as there is a basis for remedy)
UCC Battle of the Forms 

· UCC apply? (sale of goods?) 
· Mutual Assent? 

Prelim determination: Do the forms create an agreement? 
· Does the second form: 

· Second form is a definite acceptance 

· Second form is a seaonsable acceptance 

· Does not expressly reject any previous terms or limit to terms 

Contract Based on Parties Writings

· Both parties merchants? 
· If yes, additional terms incorporated if all are true 

· Offer doesn’t expressly limit to terms of offer
· “expressly limited/ expressly conditional/ objects to any diff.”

· Would not materially alter 

· “surprise” – would reas merchant have consented? 
· Consider common practice and usage

· “Hardship”- would term impose substantial economic hardship?

· Material terms—price, quantity, quality, arbitration, choice of law, disclaimer of stnd warranties
· No notification of objection w/in reasonable time

· If no, 

· Offer terms govern 

Contract based on Parties’ conduct 

· If yes, “knock-out” Rule
· Common terms and UCC Gap fillers 

Common-Law Approach 

· Mirror Image Rule

· If contracts are not a mirror image then there is no contract; it is a counter-offer
· Last shot rule 

· Last contract offered wins because it is the one performed
Layered Contracting and E-Commerce 
· Shrinkwrap terms 
· Purchaser orders a product and pays before having a chance to view or assent to standardized terms 

· Two Approaches 

· Majority—vendor makes offer by shipping the product with the terms of sale; (buyer enters agreement by not returning the product) 
· offeror must make clear in terms that accepting product means accepting terms, and that consumer can reject terms by returning product. 

· Minority—Purchaser makes the offer, then under the UCC the shrinkwrap terms work as proposal to additions

· And thus if not both parties are merchants, no binding effect. 

· Clickwrap & Browsewrap terms 

· Absent actual notice, browsewrap validity depends on putting a reasonably prudent purchaser on inquiry notice of the terms of the contract. 
II. Alternative Means of Contract Formation 
Promissory Estoppel 

1) A promise 

a. Courts generally recognize that it can be based on conduct  
b. Some courts may require a clear express promise 

2) Promisor should reasonably expect to induce action or forebearance 

3) Promise does induce such action or forebearance 

4) Injustice avoided only by enforcement of the promise 

· Remedies – remedy may be limited to restitution or to damages or specific relief as measured by the extent of reliance (not necessarily by the extent of the promise) 
Limiting Offeror’s Power to Revoke

· Option Contract – restrict offeror’s power to revoke an offer for the agreed-upon period of time 
· Formation: 

· Offeror’s promise to hold offer open and 

· Consideration from optionee to form the option contract itself 
· Nominal, recital consideration may be okay for option contracts 
· Small amount, or promise to pay later may be valid. 

· Traditionally most courts require the nominal consideration actually be paid 

· Minority of courts don’t require it to be paid 

Exception to Rules: 

· mailbox rule
· Acceptance (underlying contract) effective upon receipt (not dispatch). 
· Exception to rule that rejection, counteroffer, death/incapacity of offeror terminates power of acceptance
· To terminate, need new agreement w/ new consideration

Offer can be irrevocable if:

· Option contracts 

· Unilateral contract with part performance
· Promissory estoppel 

· Pre-Acceptance Reliance 

· Merchant Firm Offers Under UCC § 2-205

Pre-Acceptance Reliance

· Offer that reasonably expects to induce substantial action before acceptance, and does, is binding as option contract as necessary to avoid injustice. (reflects Drennan rule). 
“Drennan Rule”—Subcontractor (SC) quotes not revocable until a reasonable time has passed from GC (General Contr) being awarded contract. 
· GC reasonably relying; and SC knows 
· Implied promise that it’ll remain open 

Limitations: 
· If SC’s bid expressly states it is revocable 
· “quote may be withdrawn and is subj to change w/o notice” 

· GC not justified in relying 

· If GC has reason to believe SC bid was mistake 

· Inequitable conduct by GC- bid shopping/chopping 

Minority Approach—still no contract unless consideration for option contract 
Pre-Contractual Liability 
UCC 2-205- Firm offers 
Reqs: 

· Offer to buy or sell “goods” 

· By a “merchant” 

· Who deals in that good and holds himself as having knowledge/skill in goods 

· In a “signed” “writing” 

· That gives an assurance to offeree that it’ll be held open 

· If is on form from offeree, offeror must sign the assurance separately 

Effect: Offeror can’t revoke (even w/o consideration)

· For time stated or up to 3 months
· If no time stated, for reasonable time up to 3 months 
RESTITUTION
· Unjust enrichment 

· Promissory Restitution 
Unjust Enrichment
“Quasi- Contract” Elements

· P conferred a benefit on D

· D has knowledge of benefit and has accepted or retained the benefit
· Circumstances are such that it would be inequitable for D to retain benefit without paying fair value for it

· Did they already pay someone? 

· Two reqs for subcontractor’s quasi-contract action

· Exhaust remedies against contractor 

· Owner’s receipt of benefit w/o paying anyone
Restitution denied if: 

· D refused 

· P didn’t intend to be compensated 

· Heroic acts
· P is an officious intermeddler

No liability in restitution for unrequested benefit voluntarily conferred, unless the circ’s of transaction justify intervention

· Most common cases are emergencies where life or property are at imminent risk

· Professional services required for protection of life/health entitled to restitution, 

· if circ’s justify intervening w/o request 
· if just being heroic, then may not be entitled to unjust enrichment

· Property at risk 

· Protecting property entitled to restitution if: 

· Circs justify intervention w/o request

· When it is reasonable to assume owner would wish action performed

Costs
· Would parties have reached an agreement? 

· What terms would the parties have agreed to? 
Liability of lessors. 
· Courts generally deny contractor’s claims for work requested by lessees, but brought against lessors 
· Find owner has not been unjustly enriched where there is no showing O wanted or needed the improvements 
· Some courts may find recovery where there is unjust enrichment is proved. 

Mechanic’s lien? 
Promissory Restitution 
CL- Some situations where court may enforce a promise to pay for something previously received. 
Exceptions where a promise is based on a pre-existing legal obligation 

· Promise to pay debt barred by SOL

· Promise to pay debts previously discharged in barnkruptcy 

· Promise to perform an antecedent contract, previously voidable by promisor

· Obligations of minors affirmed expressly or by failure to disaffirm within a reasonable time after turning 18, 

· contracts entered into while lacking capacity 
· Contracts induced by fraud after fraud discovered 

Restatement Approach

Material Benefit Rule 
· promise in recognition of benefit previously received is binding to extent necessary to prevent injustice 
· Not binding if: 

· Benefit conferred as gift, or for other reasons not unjustly enriched

· To extent value is disproportionate to the benefit. 

· Promise to pay is additional sum for benefits received under pre-existing bargain 

III. Form of the Contract: Statute of Frauds 

General Principles 
Types of Contracts within the statute 

· For sale of an interest in land 

· For sale of goods with total at least $500

· That cannot be fully performed w/in one year from the time contract is made 

· Could contract be completed w/in a year? (not will it, but can it?) 
· Contracts for more than one year cannot be performed w/in one year
· Lifetime contracts don’t apply b/c person could die w/in year


SOF Requirements 
· Written document 

· Signed by party to be charged 

· Some courts have expanded what counts as a signature

· Logo, letterhead, initial may count. 

· Information 
· IDs subject matter of contract

· Indicates parties have assented 
· Essential terms 

Signed acknowledgement of contract can be aided by other documents

Can be done after contract

General Exceptions to the SoF

· Full performance by one party to a contract that cannot be performed w/in a year 
· Other party then has to be performed 

· Ex: paying in full on a multi-year contract, 

· Reliance when transaction involves an interest in land

· Kind of performance—RP thinks a contract exists based on conduct  
· Two key factors

· Taking possession of property 

· Making valuable, permanent, and substantial improvements to the property 

· Promissory Estoppel 
· Promise 
· Which induced a foreseeable and reasonable action/reliance 

· Where injustice can be avoided only by enforcement of the promise 
· Consider

· Adequacy of other remedies 

· Extent to which terms and promise shown by clear and convincing evidence 

· Reasonableness of the action

· Application of PE

· Generally allowed 
· Some will only allow where D promised to create a sufficient writing 

· Some courts reject it altogether 
Sale of Goods Statute of Frauds: UCC § 2-201
Applies when 
· Sale of goods for $500 or more
Writing must: 
· Evidence a contract

· Be signed by the party to be charged 

· Initials or printed letterhead might work

· Must specify a quantity 

Exceptions: 

· Merchants Exception—writing can be enforced against a party who did not sign if

· Both parties are “merchants” 

· w/in reasonable time of oral contract, one of the parties sends a written confirmation to other 

· which is signed by the sender and otherwise satisfies the statute as against the sender 

· recipient has reason to know its contents 

· recipient does not give written notice of objection to it w/in 10 days of receipt

· Wording the objection: 
· Must Disclaim knowledge of the contract to preserve SoF defense
· Objection to “getting price wrong” would lose SoF defense
· Specially manufactured goods—Seller makes them for buyer
· Specially manufactured 

· Not suitable for sale others 

· Substantial beginning/commitments 


· Payment has been made and accepted, or goods have been delivered and accepted

· “partial performance” can validate contract only for those goods which have been accepted/payed for 

· Where party charged admits in court that a contract was made 

Loose ends

· Not clear whether one-year rule applies to sales of goods 

· Majority view is that promissory estoppel can operate as an exception to UCC § 2-201. 
Principles of Interpretation
When Same interpretation

· Mutual understanding of the parties controls (when they both attach same meaning), even if different from a RPs interpretation 
When diff interpretation

· Modified obj standard- agreement interpreted in accordance w/ the meaning of one party if the other party either knew, or had reason to know of the meaning attached by the former 

Process: 
· Is term ambiguous on its face? 

· Do other contract provisions help in interpreting the term? 

· If not, look at contextual evidence 

Maxims of interpretation 

· Absent strong contextual evidence, courts prefer to interpret contracts to: 

· Make agreement lawful

· Make agreement reasonable 

· Reconcile any seeming inconsistencies among the terms 

· Give meaning and effect to all terms 

· If two clauses conflict, the more specific acts as an exception to general 
· Separately negotiated terms are given greater weight than standard terms 

· Handwritten terms generally control over typed/printed; typed over printed 

· When specific and general terms connected, general limited by specific 
· Contextual evidence 

· Start with express words of agreement, trying to interpret them in light of contract as whole 

· Course of performance 

· History of communications 

· Course of dealing 

· Usage of trade 

· If party is new to trade, other party must show newbie knew about usage or it was so widespread/established
Adhesion Contracts. (where court is more likely to drop off unexpected definitions 
· Generally 3 significant factors 

· Use of standard form 

· Inequality of bargaining power 

· Party writing form repeat player—knows more about law and circumstances

· Absence of choice other than to accept or reject the contract/ take it or leave it. 

Doctrine of Reasonable Expectations 

Where party has reason to believe the party manifesting assent would not do so if he knew about the term, the term is not part of the agreement. 

· If terms go against the “dickered” terms, main purpose of the agreement, or if they are bizarre/oppressive 
· Customers not bound to unknown terms which are beyond reasonable expectations

